

بروز ہفتہ مورخہ 19 نومبر 2022ء بوقت 11:00 بجے صبح منعقد ہونے والے بلوچستان صوبائی اسمبلی کے اجلاس کی

### ترتیب کارروائی

تلاوت قرآن پاک و ترجمہ

(1)

سرکاری کارروائی برائے قانون سازی

(2)

(1) مجلس قائمہ بر محکمہ تعلیم، خواندگی و غیر رسمی تعلیم، اعلیٰ تعلیم، صدارتی پروگرام، سی ڈی ڈبلیو اے، معیاری تعلیم، سائنس انفارمیشن ٹیکنالوجی کی رپورٹ بر "بلوچستان کیڈٹ کالجز کا (تریمی) مسودہ قانون مصدرہ 2022 (مسودہ قانون نمبر 25 مصدرہ 2022ء) کا پیش و منظور کیا جائے۔

(i) چیئر مین مجلس قائمہ برائے محکمہ تعلیم، خواندگی و غیر رسمی تعلیم، اعلیٰ تعلیم، صدارتی پروگرام، سی ڈی ڈبلیو اے، معیاری تعلیم، سائنس انفارمیشن ٹیکنالوجی تحریک پیش کریں گے۔ کہ مجلس کی رپورٹ بر "بلوچستان کیڈٹ کالجز کا (تریمی) مسودہ قانون مصدرہ 2022 (مسودہ قانون نمبر 25 مصدرہ 2022ء) کو پیش کرنے کی مدت میں آج مورخہ 19 نومبر 2022ء تک توسیع دینے کی منظوری دی جائے۔

(ii) چیئر مین مجلس قائمہ برائے محکمہ تعلیم، خواندگی و غیر رسمی تعلیم، اعلیٰ تعلیم، صدارتی پروگرام، سی ڈی ڈبلیو اے، معیاری تعلیم، سائنس انفارمیشن ٹیکنالوجی مجلس کی رپورٹ بر "بلوچستان کیڈٹ کالجز کا (تریمی) مسودہ قانون مصدرہ 2022 (مسودہ قانون نمبر 25 مصدرہ 2022ء) پیش کریں گے۔

(iii) وزیر برائے محکمہ تعلیم، تحریک پیش کریں گے کہ "بلوچستان کیڈٹ کالجز کا (تریمی) مسودہ قانون مصدرہ 2022 (مسودہ قانون نمبر 25 مصدرہ 2022ء) کو مجلس کی سفارشات کے بموجب فی الفور زیر غور لایا جائے۔

(iv) وزیر برائے محکمہ تعلیم، تحریک پیش کریں گے کہ "بلوچستان کیڈٹ کالجز کا (تریمی) مسودہ قانون مصدرہ 2022 (مسودہ قانون نمبر 25 مصدرہ 2022ء) کو مجلس کی سفارشات کے بموجب منظور کیا جائے۔

(جاری صفحہ 2)



(2) مجلس قائمہ بر محکمہ صحت عامہ اور بہبود آبادی کی رپورٹ بر بلوچستان ڈرگز کا (ترمیمی) مسودہ قانون صدرہ 2022ء (مسودہ قانون نمبر 30 صدرہ 2022ء) کا پیش و منظور کیا جانا۔

(i) چیئر مین مجلس قائمہ برائے محکمہ صحت عامہ اور بہبود آبادی تحریک پیش کریں گے کہ مجلس کی رپورٹ بر "بلوچستان ڈرگز کا (ترمیمی) مسودہ قانون صدرہ 2022ء (مسودہ قانون نمبر 30 صدرہ 2022ء) کو پیش کرنے کی مدت میں آج مورخہ 19 نومبر 2022ء تک توسیع دینے کی منظوری دی جائے۔

(ii) چیئر مین مجلس قائمہ برائے محکمہ صحت عامہ اور بہبود آبادی مجلس کی رپورٹ بر "بلوچستان ڈرگز کا (ترمیمی) مسودہ قانون صدرہ 2022ء (مسودہ قانون نمبر 30 صدرہ 2022ء) پیش کریں گے۔

(iii) وزیر برائے محکمہ صحت تحریک پیش کریں گے کہ "بلوچستان ڈرگز کا (ترمیمی) مسودہ قانون صدرہ 2022ء (مسودہ قانون نمبر 30 صدرہ 2022ء) کو مجلس کی سفارشات کے بموجب فی الفور زیر غور لایا جائے۔

(iv) وزیر برائے محکمہ صحت تحریک پیش کریں گے کہ "بلوچستان ڈرگز کا (ترمیمی) مسودہ قانون صدرہ 2022ء (مسودہ قانون نمبر 30 صدرہ 2022ء) کو مجلس کی سفارشات کے بموجب منظور کیا جائے۔

### (3) قومی مالیاتی کمیشن ایوارڈ کی رپورٹ کا ایوان میں پیش کیا جانا

وزیر برائے محکمہ خزانہ آئین کے آرٹیکل 160 کے شق (B) 3 کے تحت قومی مالیاتی کمیشن ایوارڈ کے عمل درآمد سے متعلق دوسری ششماہی رپورٹ (جنوری تا جون 2021) ایوان میں پیش کریں گے۔

سیکرٹری  
بلوچستان صوبائی اسمبلی

کوئٹہ  
مورخہ 18 نومبر 2022ء



# بلوچستان صوبائی اسمبلی سیکرٹریٹ

رپورٹ

برائے

مجلس قائمہ بر محکمہ تعلیم، خواندگی و غیر رسمی تعلیم، اعلیٰ تعلیم، صدارتی پروگرام  
سی ڈی ڈبلیو اے معیاری تعلیم سائنس و انفارمیشن ٹیکنالوجی۔

بابت

"بلوچستان کیڈٹ کالجز کا (تریمی) مسودہ قانون صدرہ 2022ء (مسودہ قانون نمبر 25 صدرہ 2022ء)"

منجانب:- جناب عبدالواحد صدیقی

چیئر مین مجلس قائمہ۔



## رپورٹ مجلس قائمہ

برائے محکمہ تعلیم، خواندگی و غیر رسمی تعلیم، اعلیٰ تعلیم، صدارتی پروگرام سی ڈی ڈبلیو اے معیاری تعلیم سائنس

وانفارمیشن ٹیکنالوجی

بابت

"بلوچستان کیڈٹ کالجز کا (تریمی) مسودہ قانون صدرہ 2022ء (مسودہ قانون نمبر 25 صدرہ 2022ء)"

پس منظر:-

مورخہ 27 ستمبر 2022ء کو مجلس قائمہ کی نشست بابت "بلوچستان کیڈٹ کالجز کا (تریمی) مسودہ قانون صدرہ 2022ء (مسودہ قانون نمبر 25 صدرہ 2022ء)" پر غور و خوض زیر صدارت جناب عبدالواحد صدیقی چیئر مین مجلس قائمہ منعقد ہوئی۔

2- نشست میں ذیل اراکین اور افسران نے شرکت فرمائی:-

شرکاء مجلس:-

- |      |                                                |                |
|------|------------------------------------------------|----------------|
| i)   | جناب عبدالواحد صدیقی، رکن صوبائی اسمبلی        | چیئر مین مجلس۔ |
| ii)  | محترمہ بشریٰ رند، رکن صوبائی اسمبلی            | رکن مجلس۔      |
| iii) | محترمہ شکیلہ نوید قاضی، رکن صوبائی اسمبلی      | رکن مجلس۔      |
| iv)  | محترمہ زینت شاہوانی ایڈوکیٹ، رکن صوبائی اسمبلی | رکن مجلس۔      |
| v)   | جناب نصر اللہ خان زیرے، رکن صوبائی اسمبلی      | خصوصی شرکت۔    |

افسران:-

- |       |                    |                                                    |
|-------|--------------------|----------------------------------------------------|
| vi)   | جناب طاہر شاہ کاکڑ | سیکرٹری، صوبائی اسمبلی۔                            |
| vii)  | جناب عبدالرحمن     | ایڈیشنل سیکرٹری (مجالس قانون سازی)، صوبائی اسمبلی۔ |
| viii) | جناب شبیر بادینی   | ایڈیشنل سیکرٹری، کالجز اینڈ ہائر ایجوکیشن۔         |
| ix)   | جناب شوکت علی ملک  | ایڈیشنل سیکرٹری، محکمہ قانون و پارلیمانی امور۔     |
| x)    | جناب ہاشم داوی     | ایڈیشنل سیکرٹری مجالس، صوبائی اسمبلی۔              |



## آغاز:-

3- نشست کا آغاز تلاوت کلام پاک سے ہوا جس کی سعادت جناب طاہر شاہ کاکڑ، سیکرٹری اسمبلی نے حاصل کی بعد از تلاوت سیکرٹری اسمبلی نے مذکورہ نشست کا پس منظر بیان کرتے ہوئے کہا کہ مورخہ 15 اگست 2022ء کو بلوچستان صوبائی اسمبلی کی منعقدہ نشست میں " بلوچستان کیڈٹ کا لجز کا (تریمی) مسودہ قانون صدرہ 2022ء (مسودہ قانون نمبر 25 صدرہ 2022ء) " پیش ہوا۔ جسے اسپیکر صاحب نے قاعدہ نمبر 84 کے تحت مذکورہ مجلس قائمہ کے سپرد کیا۔ مجلس کی نشست مورخہ 14 ستمبر 2022ء کو طلب کی گئی مگر چند ناگزیر وجوہات کی بناء ملتوی کی گئی۔ دوبارہ مجلس کی نشست مورخہ 27 ستمبر 2022ء کو طلب کی گئی تاکہ مذکورہ مسودہ قانون پر غور و خوض کر کے اس بابت حتمی سفارشات مرتب کی جاسکیں۔

4- سیکرٹری اسمبلی کی بریفنگ کے بعد جناب چیئر مین مجلس قائمہ نے جناب شبیر بادیانی کو دعوت دی کہ وہ مجلس کو "بلوچستان کیڈٹ کا لجز کا (تریمی) مسودہ قانون صدرہ 2022ء (مسودہ قانون نمبر 25 صدرہ 2022ء) " پر تفصیلاً بریف کریں۔

5- جناب شبیر بادیانی، ایڈیشنل سیکرٹری، کالجز اینڈ ہائر ایجوکیشن نے مذکورہ مسودہ قانون کی ترامیم پر روشنی ڈالتے ہوئے کہا کہ اس وقت بلوچستان میں دس کیڈٹ کالج فنکشنل ہیں بلوچستان میں کیڈٹ کالج کے قیام کا مقصد ہر سال انتہائی باصلاحیت اور قابل طلباء کو تیار کرنا اور نوجوان نسل کو حقیقی مسلمان، محبت وطن شہری اور زندگی کے تمام شعبوں میں ہمت، سچائی اور اعتماد کے ساتھ موثر رہنما کے طور پر ذمہ داریاں نبھانے کے لئے معیاری تعلیم فراہم کرنا ہے۔ بلوچستان کیڈٹ کالج ایکٹ 2020ء کے نفاذ سے قبل کیڈٹ کالج بلوچستان گورنمنٹ ایجوکیشنل آرڈیننس کے تحت چلائے جا رہے تھے۔ کیڈٹ کالج کے لئے مضبوط اور جامع ریگولیٹری فریم ورک فراہم کرنے کے لئے بلوچستان کیڈٹ کالج ایکٹ 2020ء میں مزید بہتری کی غرض سے کچھ ترامیم تجویز کی گئیں ہیں۔

6- ایڈیشنل سیکرٹری، کالجز اینڈ ہائر ایجوکیشن کی بریفنگ کے بعد مذکورہ مسودہ قانون پر شق وار غور و خوض اور سیر حاصل بحث کرتے ہوئے مجلس نے مسودہ قانون کی مختلف شقوں میں ترامیم کے ساتھ مسودہ قانون کو منظور کرنے کی سفارش کی۔



7۔ رپورٹ بمعہ مسودہ قانون ایوان میں برائے منظوری پیش خدمت ہے۔

نوٹ:- بل میں جن ترامیم کو شامل کرنے کی سفارش کی گئی ہیں اُن کو نمایاں (BOLD) اور انڈر لائن (UNDER LINE) ظاہر کئے گئے ہیں اور جن الفاظ/جملوں کو حذف کرنے کی سفارش کی گئی ہے اُنکے اُوپر خط کش (OVER LINE) ظاہر کئے گئے ہیں جیسے (Gadet Colleges)۔

Sd/=

(عبدالواحد صدیقی)  
چیئر مین مجلس قائمہ۔

کاظم نگسی



**BALUCHISTAN PROVINCIAL ASSEMBLY SECRETARIAT.**

**The Baluchistan Cadet Colleges (Amendment) Bill 2022,**

**Bill No. 25 of 2022.**

**A**

**Bill**

*to amend the Baluchistan Cadet Colleges Act, 2020 (Act No. X of 2020).*

**Preamble.**

**WHEREAS**, it is necessary to amend the Baluchistan Cadet Colleges Act, 2020 (Act No. X of 2020), for the purposes hereinafter appearing.

It is hereby enacted as follows,—

**Short title and Commencement.**

1. (1) This Act may be called as the Baluchistan Cadet Colleges (Amendment) Act, 2022.
- (2) It shall come into force at once.

**Amendment of Section-4, Act No. X of 2020.**

2. In the Baluchistan Cadet Colleges Act, 2020 (Act No. X of 2020), hereafter referred to as the said Act, in Section-4, for sub-section (1), the following shall be substituted: -

“The Governor Baluchistan and the Minister for Colleges, Higher and Technical Education Baluchistan shall be the Chairman and Vice-Chairman of the Board respectively.”

**Amendment of Section-5, Act No. X of 2020.**

3. In the said Act, in Section-5, in sub-section (1), for clause (g) the following shall be substituted: -

“(g) Two member of the Provincial Assembly to be nominated by the Chief Minister **Speaker Baluchistan Assembly**; and”

**Amendment of Section-12, Act No. X of 2020.**

4. In the said Act, in Section-12, for sub-section (2) and (3) the following shall be substituted: -

“(2) The Principal Cadet College for expeditious disciplinary proceedings against the employees of Cadet College shall report to the Secretary Colleges, Higher & Technical Education Department to initiate disciplinary proceedings against the employees as per prescribed Rules.

“(3) The Principal shall be the appointing authority in respect of employees in BPS-1 to 15, while the cases of employees in BPS-16 and above shall be submitted to the College, Higher and Technical Education Department for further processing/recruitment through Executive Committee or Baluchistan public Commission.”



## STATEMENT OF OBJECTS AND REASONS

The objective behind establishment of Cadet Colleges in Balochistan was to produce highly talented and competent chunk of students every year and to provide quality education to mold the young generation into true Muslim, Patriotic Citizens and effective leaders in all walks of life to shoulder the responsibilities with courage, credibility and confidence. Physical training is also compulsory part of the routine followed in the Colleges to make the cadets physically fit and to prepare them for induction in Pakistan armed forces. However, they are free to pursue any field of study and take-up any career in prestigious Federal, Provincial Departments and autonomous bodies after the completion of studies in Cadet Colleges.

Prior to enactment of Balochistan Cadet Colleges Act 2020 the Cadet Colleges were being run under the Balochistan Government Educational & Training Institutions Ordinance 1960 and was not compatible with ever growing educational requirements of cadet colleges.

In order to provide or robust and comprehensive regulatory framework for Cadet Colleges, certain amendments in Balochistan Cadet Colleges Act 2020 has been proposed and a draft amendment bill namely Balochistan Cadet Colleges (Amendment) Act, 2022, has been prepared and the same has been vetted by the Law & Parliamentary Department.



(Meer Naseebullah Khan Marri)  
Minister for Education



بلوچستان صوبائی اسمبلی سیکرٹریٹ

رپورٹ

برائے

مجلس قائمہ برائے محکمہ صحت عامہ و بہبود آبادی۔

بابت

"بلوچستان ڈرگز (ادویات) کاتریمیسی مسودہ قانون مصدرہ 2022ء (مسودہ قانون

نمبر 30 مصدرہ 2022ء)"

منجانب:- جناب محمد عارف محمد حسنی

چیئر مین مجلس قائمہ۔



## رپورٹ مجلس قائمہ بر محکمہ صحت عامہ و بہبود آبادی۔

### بابت

"بلوچستان ڈرگز (ادویات) کاتریمی مسودہ قانون مصدرہ 2022ء (مسودہ قانون نمبر 30 مصدرہ 2022ء)"

پس منظر:-

مورخہ 19 ستمبر 2022ء کی اسمبلی نشست میں مسودہ قانون "بلوچستان ڈرگز (ادویات) کاتریمی مسودہ قانون مصدرہ 2022ء (مسودہ قانون نمبر 30 مصدرہ 2022ء)" پیش ہوا جسے جناب اسپیکر صاحب نے بلوچستان صوبائی اسمبلی کے قواعد انضباط کا مجریہ 1974ء کے قاعدہ نمبر 84 کے تحت مذکورہ مجلس کے سپرد کیا۔ مذکورہ مسودہ قانون پر مجلس قائمہ کی پہلی نشست مورخہ 18 اکتوبر 2022ء بوقت دوپہر 02:30 بجے بلوچستان صوبائی اسمبلی سیکرٹریٹ کے کمیٹی روم میں زیر صدارت جناب محمد عارف محمد حسنی، چیئر مین مجلس قائمہ منعقد ہوئی۔

2- مورخہ 18 اکتوبر 2022ء کی نشست میں ذیل اراکین اور افسران نے شرکت فرمائی:-

شرکاء مجلس:-

- |                                                |                |
|------------------------------------------------|----------------|
| i) جناب محمد عارف محمد حسنی، رکن صوبائی اسمبلی | چیئر مین مجلس۔ |
| ii) انجینئر زمرک خان اچکزئی، صوبائی وزیر       | رکن مجلس۔      |
| iii) جناب ظہور احمد بلیدی، رکن صوبائی اسمبلی   | رکن مجلس۔      |
| iv) ڈاکٹر بابہ خان بلیدی، پارلیمانی سیکرٹری    | رکن مجلس۔      |

افسران:-

- |                          |                                              |
|--------------------------|----------------------------------------------|
| v) جناب طاہر شاہ کاکڑ    | سیکرٹری صوبائی اسمبلی۔                       |
| vi) جناب عبدالرحمن       | اسپیشل سیکرٹری، مجالس صوبائی اسمبلی۔         |
| vii) جناب محمد ہاشم داوی | ایڈیشنل سیکرٹری، مجالس صوبائی اسمبلی۔        |
| viii) جناب حفیظ اللہ     | ایڈیشنل سیکرٹری، محکمہ صحت حکومت بلوچستان۔   |
| xi) جناب محمد منزل       | ایڈیشنل سیکرٹری، محکمہ قانون حکومت بلوچستان۔ |



مورخہ 07 نومبر 2022ء کی دوسری نشست میں ذیل اراکین اور افسران نے شرکت فرمائی:-

### شرکاء مجلس:-

- i) جناب محمد عارف محمد حسنی، رکن صوبائی اسمبلی  
چیئر مین مجلس۔
- ii) انجینئر زمر ک خان اچکزئی، صوبائی وزیر  
رکن مجلس۔
- iii) جناب ظہور احمد بلیدی، رکن صوبائی اسمبلی  
رکن مجلس۔

### افسران:-

- iv) جناب طاہر شاہ کاکڑ  
سیکرٹری صوبائی اسمبلی۔
- v) جناب عبدالرحمن  
اسپیشل سیکرٹری، مجالس صوبائی اسمبلی۔
- vi) جناب حافظ محمد طاہر  
سیکرٹری، محکمہ صحت حکومت بلوچستان۔
- vii) جناب محمد ہاشم داوی  
ایڈیشنل سیکرٹری، مجالس صوبائی اسمبلی۔
- viii) جناب حفیظ اللہ  
ایڈیشنل سیکرٹری، محکمہ صحت حکومت بلوچستان۔
- xi) جناب محمد منزل  
ایڈیشنل سیکرٹری، محکمہ قانون حکومت بلوچستان۔

### آغاز:-

3۔ نشست کا آغاز تلاوت کلام پاک سے ہوا جس کی سعادت جناب طاہر شاہ کاکڑ سیکرٹری اسمبلی نے حاصل کی۔ بعد از تلاوت کلام پاک سیکرٹری اسمبلی نے مجلس کو بریف کرتے ہوئے کہا کہ مورخہ 19 ستمبر 2022ء کی اسمبلی نشست میں مسودہ قانون "بلوچستان ڈرگز (ادویات) کا ترمیمی مسودہ قانون صدرہ 2022ء (مسودہ قانون نمبر 30 صدرہ 2022ء)" پیش ہوا جسے جناب اسپیکر صاحب نے بلوچستان صوبائی اسمبلی کے قواعد انضباط کار مجریہ 1974ء کے قاعدہ نمبر 84 کے تحت مذکورہ مجلس کے سپرد کیا۔ اسی مسودہ قانون پر غور و خوض کی بابت آج کی نشست منعقد کی جارہی ہے۔

4۔ سیکرٹری اسمبلی کی مختصر بریفنگ کے بعد چیئر مین مجلس قائمہ نے جناب حافظ محمد طاہر، سیکرٹری محکمہ صحت کو دعوت دی کہ وہ مذکورہ مسودہ قانون کی بابت مجلس کو آگاہی دیں۔

5۔ سیکرٹری، محکمہ صحت نے مجلس کو بریف کرتے ہوئے بتایا کہ آٹھارویں آئینی ترمیم کے بعد مذکورہ Subject صوبہ کے حوالے ہوا ہے باقی تمام اسمبلیوں نے ادویات (Drugs) کے بارے میں قانون سازی کر لی ہے۔ وفاق کے 1976ء کے ڈرگز ایکٹ کو ہی ترمیم کے ساتھ تمام صوبوں نے اپنا لیا ہے ہم نے بھی ایسا ہی کیا ہے۔



6۔ سیکرٹری، محکمہ صحت کی تفصیلی بریفنگ کے بعد مجلس نے محکمہ صحت کی جانب سے تجویز کردہ بلوچستان ڈرگز (ترمیمی) مسودہ قانون پر باریک بینی سے شق وار تفصیلاً غور و خوص کیا اور کافی بحث و مباحثے کے بعد اس نتیجے پر پہنچی کہ چونکہ اٹھارویں آئینی ترمیم کے بعد مذکورہ Subject صوبوں کو منتقل ہو گیا ہے۔ باقی صوبوں نے اس بابت 1976ء کے ڈرگز ایکٹ میں اپنی اپنی ضروریات کو مد نظر رکھ کر ضروری ترامیم کر لی ہیں۔ لہذا مجلس سفارش کرتی ہے کہ بلوچستان کی سطح پر بھی ڈرگز ایکٹ 1976ء میں محکمہ صحت حکومت بلوچستان کی جانب سے پیش کردہ بلوچستان ڈرگز (ترمیمی) مسودہ قانون میں تجویز کردہ ترامیم کے ساتھ ذیل ترامیم کو بھی مسودہ قانون کا حصہ بنایا جائے۔

(1) بلوچستان ڈرگز (ترمیمی) مسودہ قانون میں صحت سے متعلق اداروں خاص کر صوبائی ڈرگز کنٹرول بورڈ، ڈرگز کنٹرول اینڈ منسٹریشن اور ڈرگز ٹیسٹنگ لیبارٹریز کے معیار کو بہتر، مستحکم اور مضبوط بنانے کی خاطر مزید موثر اور سخت ترامیم کی جائیں۔

(2) جعلی، غیر معیاری، ملاوٹ شدہ، مصنوعی اور غیر قانونی ادویات کی بڑھتی ہوئی لعنت سے صوبہ کے عوام کو محفوظ رکھنے اور مذکورہ مسودہ قانون میں موجودہ تصریحات میں پائی جانے والی خامیوں کا تدارک کرنا اور جعلی و غیر قانونی ادویات سے متعلق ملوث افراد کے لئے سزاؤں میں اضافے کی بابت ضروری ترامیم کی جائیں۔

(3) بلوچستان ڈرگز (ترمیمی) مسودہ قانون پر عملدرآمد کرانے والے محکمہ صحت کے اہلکاران کی کاردگی بہتر اور ان پر جیکٹ اینڈ بیلنس رکھنے کی خاطر ان کے لئے بھی سزاوہ جزا مختص کرنے کی بابت ضروری ترامیم کی جائیں۔

7۔ مجلس نے مسودہ قانون بمعہ رپورٹ ایوان میں برائے منظوری پیش کرنے کی سفارش کی۔

نوٹ:- بل میں جن ترامیم کو شامل کرنے کی سفارش کی گئی ہیں ان کو نمایاں طور پر (BOLD) اور انڈر لائن (UNDER LINE) ظاہر کئے گئے ہیں اور جن الفاظ/جملوں کو حذف کرنے کی سفارش کی گئی ہے ان کے اوپر خط کش (OVER LINE) ظاہر کئے گئے ہیں جیسے (Drugs)۔

Sd/=

(محمد عارف محمد حسنی)

چیئر مین مجلس قائمہ۔



# **BALUCHISTAN PROVINCIAL ASSEMBLY SECRETARIATE.**

## **The Baluchistan Drugs (Amendment) Bill 2022,** **Bill No. 30 of 2022**

**A**

### **BILL**

*further to amend the Drugs Act, 1976 (Act No. XXXI of 1976), in its application to the Baluchistan Province, for control and eradication of spurious, adulterated and substandard drugs.*

#### **Preamble.**

WHEREAS It is essential further to amend the Drugs Act, 1976 (XXXI of 1976), in its application to the Baluchistan Province, *inter alia*, for coping with the increasing menace of spurious, adulterated and substandard drugs, for provision of quality drugs to the people by updating the enforcement mechanism and providing an operative and regular monitoring system and stricter penalties, and for ancillary matters in the manner hereinafter appearing.

It is hereby enacted as follows:-

#### **Short title and commencement.**

1. (1) This Act may be called as the Baluchistan Drugs (Amendment) Act, 2022.
- (2) ~~It extends to whole of the Baluchistan.~~
- (3) It shall come into force at once.

#### **Amendment of Section-3, Act XXXI of 1976.**

2. In the Drugs Act, 1976 (XXXI of 1976), for brevity cited as the said Act, in Section-3, -

- (a) after clause (s), the following new clause (sa) shall be inserted:-

“(sa) “Notified Drugs Laboratory” means the drug testing laboratory notified by the Provincial Government under sub-Section (2) of Section-15 of the Act;”

- (b) after clause (t), the following new clause (ta) shall be inserted:-

“(ta) “Provincial Drugs Monitoring Team” means one or more Provincial Drugs Monitoring Team constituted under Section 11-B of the Act;”

- (c) for clause (zz), the following shall be substituted and inserted:-

“(zd) “sub-standard drug” means a drug which is not of specifications; *and*

“(ze) “Drug Control Administration” means, officers ~~comprising Provincial Inspector~~ appointed under Section-16 & 17 of the Act.



**Amendment of  
Section-11 of  
Act XXXI of  
1976.**

3. In the said Act, in Section-11, in sub-section (5)—
- (a) in clause (h), the word “and” appearing after the semicolon shall be ~~deleted~~ **omitted**;
  - (b) for clause (i), the following shall be substituted:-
    - “i) to specify, by general or special order, the drugs which may be sent for test and analysis to the Notified Drugs Laboratory for drug testing and analysis;
  - (c) after clause (i), as amended, the following new clauses s (j) and (k) shall be inserted:-
    - “j) to submit a monthly report of the decisions and activities to the Federal Government and the Provincial Government; *and*
    - “k) committee mean committee of the Board.”
  - (d) after sub-section (6), the following new sub-section (7) shall be inserted:-
    - “(7) The Provincial Quality Control Board may constitute a committee or committees, consisting of the members of the Board and delegate to the committee any of its powers and functions under sub-section (5) for exercise within the specified area.”

**Insertion of  
Section 11-B  
in Act XXXI of  
1976.**

4. In the said Act, after Section 11-A, the following new Section 11-B shall be inserted:-
- “11B. Provincial Drugs Monitoring Teams. –**
- (1) The Provincial Government may, by notification, constitute one or more Provincial Drugs Monitoring Team consisting of the Chairperson and members including at least two members including Chairperson from the Drug Control Administration on such terms and conditions as the Provincial Government may determine.
  - (2) The Chairperson and members of the Provincial Drugs Monitoring Team shall hold office during the pleasure of the Provincial Government.
  - (3) The Provincial Drugs Monitoring Team shall, with the approval of the Provincial Government and by notification in the official Gazette, make regulations to regulate the conduct of its business.
  - (4) The Provincial Drugs Monitoring Team may—



- a) subject to sub-section (6), exercise the powers of an Inspector under the Act;
- b) inspect any premises where any drug is being, or is to be, manufactured or sold and, in addition to any other action under the Act, recommend to the appropriate authority for the cancellation or suspension of the license to manufacture or sell drugs held by any person who is found to be contravening, or to have contravened, any of the provisions of this Act or the rules;
- c) advise the Provincial Government on ways and means to ensure the provision of quality drugs to the people;
- d) ascertain the names of such directors, partners and employees of the company, corporation, firm or institution who are *prima facie* responsible for the commission of any offence under this Act or the rules and recommend to the appropriate authority action against such persons;
- e) submit a monthly report of the recommendations and activities to the Provincial Government; *and*
- f) perform such other functions under this Act or the rules as the Provincial Government may, by notification, assign.

(5) The Provincial Drugs Monitoring Team shall exercise the powers of an Inspector in the presence of at least two officers of Drug Control Administration."

**Insertion of  
Section 11-C  
in Act XXXI of  
1976.**

**5. In the said Act, after Section 11-B, the following new Section 11-C shall be inserted:-**

**"11-C. Independent inspection.-**

**(1) Subject to sub-section (2), the Provincial Government may, on the recommendations of the Provincial Quality Control Board, engage the services of a consultant or a firm of consultants for independent inspection and evaluation of units for manufacture of drugs, distribution networks or sale-points as the Government may specify.**

**(2) No person shall be engaged as consultant unless he is qualified to be appointed as an Inspector and Government**



Analyst and is an expert in the relevant field and no firm shall be so engaged unless it has in-house capacity for the task and has in its service persons who are qualified to be appointed as Inspectors and Government Analysts and are experts in the relevant field.

(3) The consultant or the firm of consultants shall submit the report to the Provincial Quality Control Board within the specified time and the Board shall take necessary action on the report in accordance with law.

(4) For purposes of inspection and evaluation, the consultant or the experts engaged by the firm of consultants shall have the powers of an Inspector.”.

**Amendment of  
Section-15, Act  
XXXI of 1976.**

6. In the said Act, for Section-15, the following shall be substituted:-

**“15. Provincial Drugs Testing Laboratory.**

(1) The Provincial Government shall, as soon as may be, set up one or more Provincial Drugs Testing Laboratory (s) for such purposes as may be prescribed.

(2) The Provincial Government may, by notification, engage or authorize a reputed drugs testing laboratory, within the country or abroad, for test and analysis of the drug samples.”

**Amendment of  
Section-19, Act  
XXXI of 1976.**

7. In the said Act, in Section-19, in sub-section (3), for clause (i), the following shall be substituted:-

“(i) one portion or sample he shall send to the Government Analyst or, if so, specified by the Provincial Quality Control Board, to the Board for sending it to the Notified Drugs Laboratory.”

**Amendments of  
Section-22, Act  
XXXI of 1976.**

8. In the said Act, in Section-22, -

(a) in sub-section (2), after the words “any other laboratory”, the words “or the Notified Drugs Laboratory” shall be inserted;

(b) in sub-section (4)—

i. after the words “Government Analyst”, the words “or the Notified Drugs Laboratory” shall be inserted; *and*

ii. for the words “thirty days”, the words “ten days” shall be substituted; *and*



(c) in sub-section (5), after the words "Federal Government", the words "or the Provincial Government" shall be inserted

**Insertion of  
Section 22-A,  
in Act XXXI  
of 1976.**

9. In the said Act, after Section-22, the following new Section 22-A shall be inserted:-

**"22A. Reports of the Notified Drugs Laboratories.** (1) The Notified Drugs Laboratory shall submit its report to the Chairperson of the Provincial Quality Control Board.

(2) The provisions of Section-22 of the Act shall as far as may be, apply to the report of a Notified Drugs Laboratory.

(3) The Board shall take necessary action on the report in accordance with the Act and the Rules."

**Amendments of  
Section-27, Act  
XXXI of 1976.**

10. In the said Act, in Section-27, -

(a) for sub-section (1), the following shall be substituted:-

"(1) Whoever himself or by any other person on his behalf—

a) exports, imports, manufactures or sells any spurious drug or adulterated drug which causes death or physical disability or any drug which is not registered;

b) manufactures for sale any drug without a license;

c) imports without license any drug for the import of which a license is required; —

shall be punished with imprisonment which may extend to ten years but which shall not be less than three years and with fine which may extend to ~~twenty~~ **fifty** million rupees but which shall not be less than ~~ten~~ **twenty-five** million rupees.";

(b) in sub-section (2), for the expression "or with fine which may extend to one lakh rupees, or with both", the expression "or with fine which may extend to three ~~ten~~ million rupees or with both but which shall not be less than ~~one~~ **three** million rupees" shall be substituted;

(c) in sub-section (3), for the expression "one year, or with fine which may extend to ten thousand rupees, or with both", the expression "one year but which shall not be less than thirty days and with fine which may extend to one ~~hundred-thousand~~ **million** rupees but which



shall not be less than ~~thirty~~ **five hundred** thousand rupees" shall be substituted;

(d) after sub-section (3), as amended, the following new sub-sections (3-A), (3-B), (3-C) and (3-D) shall be inserted:-

"(3-A) Whoever is responsible for variation in the specification which is physically or chemically ten percent different from the specification labelled on a drug, shall be punishable with imprisonment for a term which may extend to five years or with fine which may extend to one hundred thousand rupees or with both.

(3-B) Whoever is responsible for variation in the specification which is physically or chemically more than ten per cent but is not more than twenty per cent different from the specification labelled on a drug, shall be punishable with imprisonment for a term which may extend to five years or with fine which may extend to four hundred thousand rupees or with both.

(3-C) Whoever is responsible for variation in the specification which is physically or chemically more than twenty per cent but is not more than fifty per cent different from the specification labelled on a drug, shall be punishable with imprisonment for a term which may extend to five years or with fine which may extend to seven hundred thousand rupees or with both.

(3-D) Whoever is responsible for variation in the specification which is physically or chemically more than fifty per cent different from the specification labelled on a drug, shall be punishable with imprisonment for a term which may extend to five years or with fine which may extend to one million rupees or which is three times the value of the drug taken into custody, whichever is higher, or with both and the manufacturing of the product shall remain suspended till such time that the responsibility for the lapse is fixed and remedial measures, taken.";



(e) for sub-section (4), the following shall be substituted:-

“(4) Subject to the provisions of sub-sections (1), (2), (3), (3-A), (3-B), (3-C) and (3-D), whoever himself or by any other person on his behalf contravenes any of the provisions of the Act or the rules, shall be punishable with imprisonment for a term which may extend to five years and with fine which may extend to five hundred thousand rupees or with both.”.

**Insertion of Section 27-A, in Act XXXI of 1976.**

**11.**

**In the said Act, after Section-27, the following new Section 27-A shall be inserted:-**

**“17-A. False Statement. When any person is required under this Act to prepare a report, make a statement or furnish an information, prepares the report or makes the statement or furnishes the information which is false in any material particular and which he knows or has reasonable cause to believe to be false, or does not believe to be true, shall be punishable with imprisonment for a term which may extent to three years but which shall not be less than six months and with fine which may extend to one million rupees but which shall not be less than one hundred thousand rupees.”**

**Amendments of Section-28, Act XXXI of 1976.**

**12.**

**In the said Act, in Section-28, –**

(a) in sub-section (1), for the expression “five years and with fine which may extend to two lakhs rupees”, the expression “ten years and with fine which may extend to ~~five lakhs~~ **one hundred million** rupees but which shall not be less than ~~three lakhs~~ **fifty million**” shall be substituted;

(b) in sub-section (2), for the expression “which shall not to be less than two years or more than ten years, or with fine which may extend to two lakh rupees, or with both”, the expression “which may extend to ten years but which shall not be less than five years and with fine which may extend to ~~one~~ **seventy** million rupees but which shall not be less than ~~three lakhs~~ **thirty million** rupees” shall be substituted;

(c) after sub-section (2), the following new sub-section (2-A) shall be inserted:-

“(2-A) Whoever having been convicted of an offence under sub-section (3-A), (3-B), (3-C) and (3-D) of



Section-27, is convicted for a subsequent offence under any of those sub-sections shall, if the drug is not recalled as prescribed by the Provincial Government, be punishable with imprisonment for a term which shall extend to seven years but which shall not be less than two years and with fine which may extend to ~~one and a half~~ **seventy-five** million rupees but which shall not be less than ~~five times the value of the drug taken into custody~~ **Twenty-five million rupees**"; and

(d) in sub-section (3), for the expression "seven years, or with fine which may extend to one lakh rupees or with both", the expression "ten years but which shall not be less than ninety days and with fine which may extend to ~~one ten~~ million rupees but which shall not be less than ~~three lakhs~~ **one million** rupees" shall be substituted.

Insertion of Section 28-A in Act XXXI of 1976.

13. In the said Act, after Section-28, the following new Section 28-A shall be inserted:-

"28-A. Recall of drugs.-A person charged with the commission of an offence under sub-section (3) of Section 28, shall be deemed to have committed no offence when the drug which is subject of that offence, has not caused any death or physical disability and is recalled as prescribed by the Provincial Government."

Amendments of Section-30, Act XXXI of 1976.

In the said Act, in Section-30, for sub-section (2), the following shall be substituted:-

"(2) Notwithstanding anything contained in the Code of Criminal Procedure, 1898 (V of 1898)—

(a) an offence punishable under sub-section (1) of section 27 shall be cognizable and non-bailable; and

(b) all offences under this Act shall be non-bailable.

(2-A) No court other than a Drug Court established under this Act shall try an offence punishable under this Act."

Amendments of Section-31, Act XXXI of 1976.

14.. In the said Act, in Section-31, -

(a) for the words "Federal Government" wherever occur, the words "Provincial Government" shall be substituted.



(e) for sub-section (4), the following shall be substituted:-

“(4) Subject to the provisions of sub-sections (1), (2), (3), (3-A), (3-B), (3-C) and (3-D), whoever himself or by any other person on his behalf contravenes any of the provisions of the Act or the rules, shall be punishable with imprisonment for a term which may extend to five years and with fine which may extend to five hundred thousand rupees or with both.”.

**Insertion of Section 27-A, in Act XXXI of 1976.**

**11.**

**In the said Act, after Section-27, the following new Section 27-A shall be inserted:-**

**“17-A. False Statement. When any person is required under this Act to prepare a report, make a statement or furnish an information, prepares the report or makes the statement or furnishes the information which is false in any material particular and which he knows or has reasonable cause to believe to be false, or does not believe to be true, shall be punishable with imprisonment for a term which may extent to three years but which shall not be less than six months and with fine which may extend to one million rupees but which shall not be less than one hundred thousand rupees.”**

**Amendments of Section-28, Act XXXI of 1976.**

**12.**

**In the said Act, in Section-28, –**

(a) in sub-section (1), for the expression “five years and with fine which may extend to two lakhs rupees”, the expression “ten years and with fine which may extend to ~~five lakhs~~ **one hundred million** rupees but which shall not be less than ~~three lakhs~~ **fifty million**” shall be substituted;

(b) in sub-section (2), for the expression “which shall not to be less than two years or more than ten years, or with fine which may extend to two lakh rupees, or with both”, the expression “which may extend to ten years but which shall not be less than five years and with fine which may extend to ~~one~~ **seventy** million rupees but which shall not be less than ~~three lakhs~~ **thirty million** rupees” shall be substituted;

(c) after sub-section (2), the following new sub-section (2-A) shall be inserted:-

“(2-A) Whoever having been convicted of an offence under sub-section (3-A), (3-B), (3-C) and (3-D) of



(b) for sub-section (2), the following shall be substituted:-

“(2) A Drug Court shall consist of the Chairperson who is or has been, or is qualified for appointment as a Judge of High Court, and two full-time members who are experts in pharmaceutical medical field:

Provided that all the powers exercisable by the Federal Government under the said Act in respect of existing Drug Court in the Balochistan shall be the powers of the Provincial Government on and from the commencement of this Act.

(c) sub-sections (7) and (8) shall be omitted.

**Insertion of  
Section 31-A,  
in Act XXXI  
of 1976.**

15. In the said Act, after Section-31, the following new Section 31-A shall be inserted:-

“**31-A. Appeal.** (1) The Provincial Government or the person sentenced by a Drug Court may, within sixty days, file an appeal against the final order of the Drug Court to Balochistan High Court and the appeal shall be heard by a Bench of that Court consisting of not less than two Judges.

(2) The Drug Court shall, as soon as possible, supply copies of the final order to the parties free of cost:

Provided that the Chairman and one of the members shall constitute quorum of a Drug Court for the purposes of deciding all the matters under the Act other than the final hearing and decision of a case.

(3) The provisions of Sections-5 and 12 of the Limitation Act, 1908 (IX of 1908) shall be applicable to an appeal under this Section.”

**Insertion of  
Section 41-A,  
in Act XXXI  
of 1976.**

16. In the said Act, after Section-41, the following new Section 41-A shall be inserted:-

“**41-A. Suspension of license by the Provincial Quality Control Board.**

(1) Notwithstanding anything contained in Section-41, the Provincial Quality Control Board may, subject to the conditions mentioned in that Section, and after affording an opportunity of hearing to the manufacturer and recording detailed reasons including the grounds of suspension, suspend the manufacturing license of a manufacturer within the Balochistan for such period not exceeding



fifteen days as the Board may determine and shall, as soon as may be, report the matter to the Central Licensing Board for such action as the Board may deem appropriate.

(2) A copy of the order under sub-section (1) shall immediately be supplied to the manufacturer, requiring him to take appropriate remedial measures.

(3) The manufacturer shall take remedial measures and shall request the Provincial Quality Control Board for an immediate inspection of the unit, and the Board shall promptly arrange an inspection.

(4) If the Board is satisfied that the grounds leading to the suspension of the license have been remedied, it shall restore the license of the manufacturer and report the matter to the Central Licensing Board but if the Board is not so satisfied, it may require the manufacturer to take the remaining remedial measures.

(5) Notwithstanding anything contained in sub-section (3) or sub-section (4), the Board shall arrange inspection of the Unit for manufacture of drugs at five days prior to the expiry of the period of suspension and if it is of the view that sufficient remedial steps have not been taken, the Board may, from time to time and after recording reasons, extend the period of suspension up to the maximum period of ninety days in all.

(6) If the manufacturer does not take effective remedial steps during the period or extended period of suspension of the license, the Board shall refer the matter to the Central Licensing Board for immediate cancellation of the manufacturing license.

(7) Any manufacturer aggrieved by the order of suspension may, within seven days from the receipt of the order, prefer an appeal to the appellate authority as notified by the Government and the appellate authority shall dispose of the appeal maximum within seven days.”.

**Insertion of  
Section 43-A,  
in Act XXXI  
of 1976.**

17.

**“43-A. Power to delegate.** (1) The Provincial Government may, subject to such conditions as it may determine, delegate any of its functions to the Provincial Quality Control Board or to any other person or authority.

(2) The Provincial Quality Control Board may, subject to such conditions as it may determine, delegate any of its functions and powers under this Act or the rules to the Monitoring Committee or any other person or authority.”.



## **STATEMENT OF OBJECTS AND REASONS.**

In consequence of the Constitution (Eighteenth Amendment) Act 2010, the subject of drugs/medicines was devolved to the provinces on abolition of the concurrent legislative list of the Constitution. Accordingly, the Drugs Act, 1976 came within the legislative competence of the provinces in terms of Article 142 (c) of the Constitution. It is imperative to strengthen the provincial institutions such as Provincial Quality Control Board, Drug Control Administration and the Drugs Testing Laboratories in the Balochistan. People of the Balochistan may not be exposed to the perils of spurious and substandard drugs. It is, therefore, essential to amend the Drugs Act, 1976 in order to cope with the emerging menace of spurious, adulterated, substandard, counterfeit and illegal drugs. The prime object of the proposed amendments in the Act *ibid* is to plug the loop holes in the existing provisions of the law and to enhance the punishments for the persons involved in the offences relating to spurious and substandard drugs. Hence this Bill.

Sd/-  
**(SYED EHSAN SHAH)**  
MINISTER FOR HEALTH  
Government of Balochistan